IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CARLOS A. PIMENTEL,

Petitioner,

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

err firm fam fan Eirs ern fârs kan fan fan fan san sûn san sûn fan sûn sûn sûn san san san san sûn sûn sûn san san san san 🕫

Case No.

DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA SECOND DISTRICT

BRIEF OF PETITIONER ON JURISDICTION

JAMES MARION MOORMAN PUBLIC DEFENDER TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT FLORIDA BAR NO. 0143265

STEPHEN KROSSCHELL ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER

Public Defender's Office Polk County Courthouse P. O. Box 9000--Drawer PD Bartow, FL 33830 (813) 534-4200

ATTORNEYS FOR PETITIONER

TOPICAL

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The trial court departed from the guidelines recommendation of 2 1/2 to 3 1/2 years in prison and imposed a combined sentence of thirty years in prison. The four reasons for departure were (1) unamenability to probation, (2) timing of violation, (3) second violation, and (4) nature of violation (attacking a police officer). On May 11, 1990, the second district court of appeal affirmed this departure sentence on the authority of Williams v. State, 15 F.L.W. D912 (Fla. 2d DCA April 4, 1990). Petitioner now seeks further review in the Supreme Court of Florida.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

If this court accepts jurisdiction in <u>Williams</u>, then it should also accept jurisdiction in the present case.

NOT FINAL UNTIL TIME EXPIRES TO FILE REHEARING MOTION AND, IF FILED, DETERMINED.

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

OF FLORIDA

SECOND DISTRICT

CARLOS A. PIMENTEL a/k/a JOSE QUINONES a/k/a NEIVER CASTRO GUZMAN,

Appellant,

v.

CASE NO. 89-00748

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

Opinion filed May 11, 1990.

Appeal from the Circuit Court for Hillsborough County; Harry Lee Coe, III, Judge.

James Marion Moorman, Public Defender, and Stephen Krosschell, Assistant Public Defender, Bartow, for Appellant.

Robert A. Butterworth, Attorney General, Tallahassee, and Anne Y. Swing, Assistant Attorney General, Tampa, for Appellee. Received By

MAY 1 1 1990

Appellate Division Public Defenders Office

SCHOONOVER, Judge.

The appellant, Carlos A. Pimentel, a/k/a Jose Quinones, a/k/a Neiver Castro Guzman, challenges the final judgments and sentences imposed upon him after he was found guilty of violating the terms and conditions of his probation in two different cases. We affirm in part and reverse in part.

The appellant, while serving two different terms of probation, under two different names, was charged with violating his probation in both cases. He pled not guilty to the charges, and one hearing was held in connection with both cases.

In circuit court case number 86-12147, the appellant under the name of Jose Alberto Quinones was charged with and found guilty of violating the terms and conditions of his probation when he committed two new crimes under the name of Neiver Castro Guzman. The trial court revoked his probation and sentenced him to serve a departure sentence of fifteen years imprisonment for the underlying crime of robbery. We find no merit in the appellant's contention that the trial court's reasons for departure were invalid. We, accordingly, affirm the judgment and sentence entered in that case. See Williams v. State, No. 87-01981 (Fla. 2d DCA April 4, 1990).

In circuit court case number 87-6875, the appellant under the name of Carlos A. Pimentel was charged with violating the terms and conditions of his probation by failing to report to his probation officer. At the probation revocation hearing, the state presented no evidence concerning this violation. The trial court, however, found him guilty of violating the terms and conditions of his probation. The court then revoked his probation and sentenced him to serve a departure sentence of fifteen years imprisonment for the underlying offense of possession of cocaine with intent to sell or deliver. The court ordered this sentence to be served consecutively to the sentence imposed in case number 86-12147.

A person's probation cannot be revoked for conduct not charged by affidavit and warrant. See § 948.06(1), Fla. Stat. (1987); Harris v. State, 495 So.2d 243 (Fla. 2d DCA 1986). In case number 87-6875, the state charged the appellant with violating his probation by failing to report to his probation officer and at the probation revocation hearing failed to present any evidence that he was guilty of that charge. Although sufficient evidence was presented to establish that the appellant was guilty of other offenses, we have held that probation cannot be revoked for one reason when the affidavit and warrant state another. Mack v. State, 342 So.2d 562 (Fla. 2d DCA 1977). The trial court, therefore, erred by revoking the appellant's probation in case number 87-6875.

We, accordingly, reverse and remand with instructions to reinstate the appellant's probation in case number 87-6875. The state, however, is not precluded from taking any further appropriate action it deems advisable in connection with the appellant's probation on this charge.

Affirmed in part, reversed in part, and remanded with instructions.

RYDER, A.C.J., and PARKER, J., Concur.