# IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

PER S. MADD

JUN 18 1990

CARLOS A. PIMENTEL,

Petitioner,

v.

Case No. 76,0447

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF THE DECISION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL SECOND DISTRICT

#### BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

ANNE Y. SWING
Assistant Attorney General
Florida Bar ID#: 0299294
1313 Tampa Street, Suite 804
Park Trammell Building
Tampa, Florida 33602
(813) 272-26707

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

/mev

#

#### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The instant cases cites authority that is pending review in this Court and it may be reviewed on that basis, but the authority Petitioner gives for such review has no logical application because the case that was cited here is pending on a certified question and conflict is not suggested. If the Court has addressed the question in any decision or rule to date, Petitioner has not cited it and Respondent has not found it otherwise. The Court has granted review in such circumstances, but not necessarily for reasons that would suggest that here.

If jurisdiction is accepted, the Court may review the decision in its entirety or only the portion that is directly related to the certified question. Likewise, the Court may review this case separately or together with those cases in which the relevant question was certified. In determining such matters, the Court should be aware that the issues in this case factually or legally identical to those in controlling case as Petitioner suggests. They are not particularly similar, even if only the sentence is considered.

#### ARGUMENT

# **ISSUE**

THE CONSOLIDATED REVIEW SOUGHT WOULD BE PROPER BUT THE ADVISABILITY IS LESS CLEAR THAN PETITIONER SUGGESTS.

The decision Petitioner asks the Court to review in the instant case is the Second District's affirmance of a departure sentence on the authority of that court's earlier decision in Williams v. State, 15 F.L.W. D912 (Fla. 2d DCA, April 4, 1990). In Williams, the Second District held guidelines departure permissible where there were multiple violations of probation, but certified that holding as a question of great public importance. This Court has accepted jurisdiction, and the matter is now pending as Supreme Court Case No. 75,919. Petitioner asks this Court to review the instant case on that basis, and to consolidate it with Williams.

As explained in Respondent's supplemental case and fact statement, the Second District certified the <u>Williams</u> question in a number of other cases, which were collected and consolidated at that level and placed under the stewardship of a lead counsel for each party to economize efforts and ensure that the cases are all parallel and their status the same in both courts. Petitioner could presumably have achieved the result he seeks in this case by following the procedures already established for cases involving the <u>Williams</u> issue. Respondent does not know why a different procedure was used in this instance and is not certain that what Petitioner asks in the instant case is altogether appropriate.

Petitioner asserts that review is proper under <u>Jollie v. State</u>, 405 So.2d 418 (Fla. 1981), because the instant opinion cites <u>Williams</u>, which the Court has accepted for review. He has moved to consolidate this case with <u>Williams</u>, asserting that the issues are factually and legally identical. Respondent does not question the Court's authority to do as Petitioner asks, but neither result is as obvious as he suggests.

Petitioner's reliance on <u>Jollie</u> is not entirely novel, but the logic of applying the rule of that case to this decision would seem questionable, and the Respondent has found no discussion of the question at all. The rule in <u>Jollie</u> is that citation of a controlling case that is pending review is <u>primatically</u> evidence of conflict. The decision is presumptively reviewable on that basis. The logic is obvious when the decision cited is itself before the Court because of conflict.

That is not the situation here, however. <u>Williams</u> is pending review because the holding was certified as a question of great public importance. There might in fact be cases that conflict with <u>Williams</u> and with the instant decision, but Petitioner has not alleged conflict as to this case or <u>Williams</u>, and conflict would not be assumed when a question is certified. The question certified might well be novel. Logic therefore suggests that citing a decision that is pending on a certified question would not be evidence of conflict as to the later decision.

Respondent recognizes that the same policy may apply in both situations, that it may be just as important to permit review when the controlling decision is pending on a certified question as when it is pending because of conflict, and that the <u>Jollie</u> rule might be interpreted logically in a way that would cover both. Citation to a case in which the same question is certified might, for example, be seen as evidence that the question is also important in the later case. On the other hand, there is already a method for obtaining review when a relevant issue has been certified. Certification can be obtained in the later case as well. If that procedure is seen as more beneficial to one court or both than the direct procedure arguably permitted by <u>Jollie</u>, this Court might conclude that the rule should not be expanded.

If this Court has addressed the question, Respondent has not found the discussion. The Court has applied the rule in the manner Petitioner suggests on at least one occasion. In State v. Brown, 475 So.2d 1 (Fla. 1981), the Court cited Jollie as authority for accepting jurisdiction of a decision that cited a case pending on a certified question, and this may have occurred on other occasions. The jurisdictional basis for review of the decision cited is not always specified. Respondent would assume, however, that the logic of applying Jollie to certified questions might not have been brought to the Court's attention, or that the petition might have anticipated the question and shown that the citation really was evidence of conflict in that particular case. The distinction between the situation here and that to which <u>Jollie</u> speaks is therefore noted here in the event the Court may wish to consider it.

Petitioner's assumption that the instant case and Williams are interchangeable is far more questionable than his reliance on The suggestion in his motion to consolidate that the issues in the two cases are factually and legally identical is They share a common issue, each involved additional probation violations that the guidelines would not have taken into account, and the district court did not suggest that any other, more specific facts were necessary to the affirmance of the departure in either. Beyond that, however, there is no particular similarity between the cases at all. Sentencing is not the only issue in this case, and even the sentencing issues might differ if this Court disagrees with the rationale of the Second District. The facts of this case are unusual, and the issues are all susceptible to resolution on that limited basis.

Williams which arose out of the same unusual circumstances which led to the departure sentence, and the facts could determine the outcome of either issue or both. Each time Petitioner was arrested, he used a different name, was sentenced as a first offender, disappeared, and left his probation officers and the court to look for nonexistent people at incorrect addresses. The aliases and cases began to be connected after his third arrest, but not all at once. When the third set of offenses was charged

as a violation of probation in the first case, the second case was still separate. It was soon tied in and transferred, and the cases were administered jointly thereafter.

Petitioner's probation in the first two cases was revoked because of the later offenses and consecutive fifteen year departure sentences imposed by a joint order following what specifically everyone involved, defense counsel understood to be a joint proceeding applicable to both cases. The Second District affirmed the sentence in the first case, citing Williams, but concluded that revocation was improper in the other. The affidavit charging the third set of offenses as a probation violation had not been amended to include the second The Second District case number or duplicated for that file. applied the general rule requiring a violation to be charged by affidavit, but the facts were argued and another court might decide the case in terms of actual notice, express waiver, estoppel, or other fact-specific grounds.

While this issue may not be reached, it is noted in the event the Court does not wish to consider only one of two identical sentences imposed in a joint proceeding and by a joint order, in what the trial court considered to be two essentially identical cases calling for identical results, and ignore the other; or to question the district court's ruling where it supported the trial court's effort and let the ruling stand where it was in derogation of the lower court's effort.

The facts could be significant to the outcome of this case even if the Court addresses only the sentencing issue. The violations, the stated reasons for departure, and the circumstances otherwise are not the same in this case and Williams. The differences were unimportant under the rationale employed by the Second District and will be unimportant here if the holding of Williams is affirmed. If this Court reverses, however, specific facts could determine the validity of the sentence in this case and any or all of the other cases which share the same issue. The Court could determine that multiple violations would support departures in some instances, depending upon the violations that would otherwise go unpunished, and the results here, in Williams, and in other such cases might differ. Likewise, the Court could determine that the departure was proper in one case or another because of some other factor, like the fact that Petitioner here was on probation in two cases at once, or because of some entirely different reason the trial court stated in that case.

Respondent does not suggest that the instant case cannot be reviewed in conjunction with <u>Williams</u> and the common issue resolved in that context. The undersigned is not familiar with all the cases involving the <u>Williams</u> issue, but would assume that some of those already consolidated may well have additional issues, potentially significant facts, or both, just as this case does. Respondent would simply note that the considerations are not as limited as Petitioner suggests.

# CONCLUSION

Respondent respectfully requests this Honorable Court to take the foregoing considerations into account in determining whether to comply with Petitioner's requests.